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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (“the Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong
Kong and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lottery. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown on pages 197 to 198.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and appropriations of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 157. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Club during the year are set out in notes 25 to 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group appropriated HK$1,800 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust and donated HK$279 million for other charitable purposes.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Club are shown in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

STEWARDS
The Board of Stewards is listed on page 5 of this annual report.

Mr T. Brian Stevenson and Dr Simon S O Ip were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the Annual General Meeting 2011.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Anthony W K Chow, Dr Christopher Cheng
Wai Chee, Mr Michael T H Lee and The Hon Sir C K Chow will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of
significance to the business of the Club or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Club were entered into or existed during the year.
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AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

T. Brian Stevenson
Chairman
21 July 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club™)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 157 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated and the Club’s statements of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

STEWARDS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Club as at 30 June 2012, and of the Group’s surplus and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 July 2012



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mealaE
BEARB=1THLFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FffzE Note 2012 2011
(Fi#&E note 1) (Fff&E note 1)
EEAHE Number of race meetings 81 85
FBERRIFEE Amounts wagered by customers 2.2 138,997 128,553
BEREZEBA Betting and lottery revenue 2.2 25,082 23,727
BEHRESHER Betting and lottery duty (15,768) (15,011)
2R F St I8 S M A Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (48) (51)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,154) (1,030)
R RAE Net margin and commission 4 8,112 7,635
Haplg A Other revenue 5 3,340 2,178
11,452 9,813
K A Operating costs 6 (7,346) (6,789)
RERER Operating surplus 4,106 3,024
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 125 61
BEERERRPBREHSHRR Surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 7 425 626
BERESRENRER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 8 194 845
BisE A Finance costs 22 9) (10)
Bk Financial surplus 735 1,522
Frib HREFIE R F] Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 16 49 15
HMRTIE - BIREREETESESHEIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to
ERTHEAESRERESAINELR Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund
and Development Fund 4,890 4,561
g Taxation 9 (425) (345)
HBRFIER  BIBREETESEESER Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations to
ERTHEAESRERESAINER Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund
and Development Fund 4,465 4,216
BRTERBESSLERETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 10
- BRES — Allocations Fund (1,600) (1,130)
- EXES - Capital Fund (200) (670)
BRRBRBRENFEELR Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,665 2,416
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund 26 (194) (845)
ERTRRES Transfer to Development Fund 27 (18) =
REBEBNETERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 25 2,453 1,571

156
157



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REREREK

BEXA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million FffzE Note 2012 2011
BREBRBEZNFERA Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,665 2,416
Hitn2 U= Other comprehensive income
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
B1h (518)/ B (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of
BEEFSRREARESAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 25 (179) 1,043
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 26 (572) 1,108
BZRESRIREHS Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 27 (10) 21
BEFDEBRARGE RN BB RS Realised gains reclassified to income statement
BEEFSRROARESAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 25 (223) (12)
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 26 (285) (27)
EEHIBELRE Currency translation differences 25 9 30
AEERBEEMEE (HE)/ k& Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (1,260) 2,163
AEEZHERREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,405 4,579




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 7% iR 0 3R
BEAA=THILEE at 30 June #24 Consolidated E& Club
HEBT in HK$ million BiEE Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
FERBEE Non-current assets
M - RIEBEREM Property, plant and equipment 12 4,987 4,595 4,179 3,839
EERNBE b K + tth (5 FARE Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 13 1,346 1,353 - -
REYE Investment properties 14 3 3 3 3
B ARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 5 - = 1,134 1,134
HEEFBEERE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 16 103 54 — =
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments 26 11,825 12,488 11,825 12,488
REKREAS Long-term investment portfolios 17 13,023 13,012 10,526 10,601
REAFE(IFIE Long-term prepayments 20 443 465 — =
Hib&EE Other assets 18 353 287 353 287
32,083 32,257 28,020 28,352
MENEE Current assets
BERFSEE Debt securities portfolio 19 526 318 526 318
mf B D B FTER E R Loans to subsidiaries 115 — = 1,909 1,910
HiRBEE Other current assets 20 879 758 465 417
FEWEHEA T HRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 = = 907 147
ySEIEER Short-term deposits 21 6,961 5,243 5,408 4,537
BITER  BeREMARBES Bank balances, cash and
other liquid funds 21 1,160 1,084 454 394
9,526 7,403 9,669 7,723
mEEE Current liabilities
HHIER Short-term loans 22 (141) (180) = =
BRI R FE U R IE Creditors and receipts in advance 23 (4,625) (4,227) (2,863) (2,568)
EATHEBARNRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11 = - (3,694) (3,202)
FEFE Taxation payable (457) (352) (121) (94)
(5,223) (4,759) (6,678) (5,864)
TEBNEEFAE Net current assets 4,303 2,644 2,991 1,859
FERBAE Non-current liabilities
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 24 (144) (64) (137) (65)
36,242 34,837 30,874 30,146
& Reserves 25 23,388 21,328 19,049 17,658
HBRES Contingency Fund 26 11,825 12,488 11,825 12,488
BRES Development Fund 27 1,029 1,021 = =
ERAE Total equity 36,242 34,837 30,874 30,146
£ T. Brian Stevenson
i3 aH Simon S O Ip
EHR Stewards
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HRES BRES

& Contingency ~ Development Fkc)

BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total

—O——&F+tHA—H& Balance at 1 July 2011 21,328 12,488 1,021 34,837
AEEZEKE /(BE) #58 Total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year 2,060 (663) 8 1,405

Z—O—ZHEXRB=1TH#&& Balance at 30 June 2012 23,388 11,825 1,029 36,242

—O—OFtRB—H#&s Balance at 1 July 2010 18,696 10,562 1,000 30,258
AEEZHERREEE Total comprehensive

income for the year 2,632 1,926 21 4,579

ZO——FXRA=THERH Balance at 30 June 2011 21,328 12,488 1,021 34,837




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER
BEARB=1THLFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FffzE Note 2012 2011
EETH Operating activities
EETEMELENRS Cash generated from operations 29 4,297 4,185
EXARE Interest paid 9) (10)
EfTFES Income tax paid (265) (275)
BEBBHBX Income tax refunded 25 =
BRTERAEEREEETES Appropriations to
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (1,800) (1,800)
EETBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,248 2,100
REEE Investing activities
BEYE - REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,188) (840)
BESEBENES R T EARE Purchase of leasehold land and
land use rights under operating leases - (936)
HEREWE Sale of investment property 883 =
HEWE - REBERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 2
2 WERFRI S Interest received 500 417
EWER S Dividends received 173 243
BEAHBENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (14,400) (17,331)
HERBENKEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 13,171 17,004
BERAFERE Purchase of other financial assets
ERERVERNEMMEEE at fair value through profit or loss = (53)
HERAFEEEBERVIRNEMUMEEE Sale of other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 29 210
HETESBMIT AR/ (fF) FEERE Net receipt/(payment) for derivative financial instruments 284 (208)
REREASNERRD Decrease in deposits held in
long-term investment portfolios 83 189
RETEFTANFERS Net cash used in investing activities (463) (1,303)
Rl & SEE Financing activities
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (43) (297)
RIESEEFTANERS Net cash used in financing activities (43) (297)
ReERFESEEBYFIEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,742 500
FHHRERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,327 5,670
Rk Exchange gains 52 157
FRRERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,121 6,327
ReRFESEBYWETIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySEIEER Short-term deposits 6,961 5,243
RIER  BEeREMRBHES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 1,160 1,084
8,121 6,327
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lottery. The Club is incorporated
in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports
Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on
pages 197 to 198.

The last three race meetings of the 2010/11 racing season were held on 1 July 2011, 6 July
2011 and 10 July 2011 (“July 2011 race meetings”) and the last five race meetings of the 2011/12
racing season were held on 1 July 2012, 4 July 2012, 8 July 2012, 11 July 2012 and 15 July
2012 (“July 2012 race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2011 race meetings
have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 and
the financial results of July 2012 race meetings will be included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 30 June 2013. The 2010/11 and 2011/12 proforma consolidated
income statement for full racing season is shown on page 199.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 157 to 198 were approved by the Board of
Stewards on 21 July 2012.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial instruments which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Revised standard and interpretation that are effective for the current accounting period

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

The adoption of the revised standard and interpretation does not have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting
policies.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New and revised standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but are

not yet effective

The following new and revised standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2012, but have not been early

adopted by the Group:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new and revised
standards and amendments would be in the period of initial application, but not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised standards and amendments would have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes. A reconciliation

RERSEMBHNELE - UTREEFREEEEEBER  of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery revenue is shown below.
5 RRVEER -
2012
EEHY RIREE

BEANA=THILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football i35 ko)
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FEEIR MR Amounts wagered by customers 84,019 47,285 7,693 138,997
BEEE  BikESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (70,357)  (39,404) (4,154) (113,915)
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 13,662 7,881 3,539 25,082
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.2 Betting and lottery revenue (cont.)

2011
BEEHY RIREE
BEANA=THILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football i35 ko)
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FBERRIFEE Amounts wagered by customers 81,924 39,763 6,866 128,553
BEEE  BikESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (68,475)  (32,643) (3,708) (104,826)
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 13,449 7,120 3,158 23,727
FEWNBRBETREERIAE  BIRIBERMEMSE - The consolidated income statement presents the amounts wagered by customers but this is for
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information purposes only. Amounts wagered represent amounts received in respect of bets placed
by customers on betting and lottery activities during the year.

2.3 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2012,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Jointly controlled entity
Jointly controlled entity is a joint venture whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and is initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s post-acquisition
results is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. In the consolidated statement of financial position, the investment in a
jointly controlled entity comprises the Group’s share of net assets and its net advances made to the
jointly controlled entity, plus goodwill identified on acquisition and net of accumulated impairment
losses, if any. When the Group’s share of losses in the jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entity are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R 3% i

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.4 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club
or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed appropriate
by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency Fund
investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised surplus
or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is
reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the
financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.5 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from
the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating
surplus, interest income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification fees
of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during the
year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment
portfolios.

2.6 Long-term investment portfolios
The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios is to invest surplus funds in excess of
normal operational requirements for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed
within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment
portfolios is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.7 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting policy
for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.8 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date. The Contingency Fund investments, long-term investment
portfolios, and debt securities portfolio may contain these financial assets. Purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.8 Financial assets (cont.)
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
retained in the investment revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale of these assets,
the differences between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified from
investment revaluation reserve to income are included in “Surplus/deficit from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments”.
Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private real
estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values
will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of notes with derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives. The
Group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps, equity options or foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely linked to the underlying assets. The Group designates these
assets at fair value at inception.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net
sale proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income
statement unless the derivatives are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period where these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 20.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated and the Club’s
statements of financial position, deposits placed at bank for a fixed term are classified as “Short-
term deposits” while other elements of cash and cash equivalents are classified as “Bank balances,
cash and other liquid funds”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % & & Mff &t

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.9 Impairment of financial asset

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. It may not be possible to
identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect of several
events may have caused the impairment. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter
how likely, are not recognised.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For equity securities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence
of impairment for an investment may include information about significant changes taken place in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment which indicates that the cost of the
investment may not be recovered, as well as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment below its cost. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement is reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments
and alternative investments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For debt securities and loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress since
they are not in use. On completion, the project costs are

transferred to the appropriate property, plant and equipment.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.10 Property, plant and equipment (cont.)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.11 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the period of their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the same rate
as buildings.

2.12 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.

2.13 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.14 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & % & & M &

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.15 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation on
property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment in a jointly
controlled entity, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.16 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation
are recognised in the consolidated income statement except for translation differences on non-
monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such as equities, which are included in the
investment revaluation reserve.

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is partially disposed of or sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income statement, as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.18 Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.19 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and rebates
and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant betting
service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised when payment becomes due.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from food and beverage sales, other member services and livery charges is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is shown net of overseas withholding taxes and recognised on the accruals
basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The retirement benefit costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method and the cost of
providing pensions is charged to the consolidated income statement so as to spread the cost over
the estimated service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the actuary who carries
out a full valuation of the Scheme annually. The pension obligation is measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government securities which have terms
of maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses, to the extent
that any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten per cent of the greater of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of Scheme assets, are recognised
over the average remaining estimated service lives of employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & % & & M &

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.20 Employee benefits (cont.)

(a) Defined benefit scheme (cont.)

Past service costs, if any, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

Pension liabilities, if any, are included under other liabilities in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position. They represent the net total of the Group and Club’s pension
obligations; plus any unrecognised actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses); minus any unrecognised
past service costs; and minus the fair value of Scheme assets. If the net total determined is negative,
then the resulting asset, which is included under other assets in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position, is limited to the net total of any cumulative unrecognised actuarial
losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the Scheme or
reductions in future contributions to the Scheme.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme applicable to each year are charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
Employer’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) are charged
to the consolidated income statement for the year.

(d) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or
entities.

2.22 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested at least
annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment on
the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost over their estimated
useful lives (note 2.10).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors provided by the Club, which
are disclosed in note 18. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can affect the present
value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Certain tax treatments adopted by the Group in past years are yet to be finalised with the relevant
tax authority. In assessing the Group’s income tax and deferred taxation in the 2012 consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

3.4 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made.

3.5 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing whether:
(1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using estimated cash flow
projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Group’s
reported financial position and results of operations.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered on horse race betting and football betting net of the
related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong

Kong.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment

to Lotteries Fund.

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
ESELAF Horse race betting net margin 3,709 3,663
EEREBEAR Football betting net margin 3,941 3,560
fEMAe Lottery commission 462 412

8,112 7,635
5 Hfttt A 5 OTHER REVENUE

EEEMBATEGHESENSE  SEEKERS
BE-ASE BEFE EFRENE  KEHERSBR
A AEERERBHRER HEREME R -

Other revenue of the Group principally comprises membership entrance, qualification and subscription
fees, gate admission charges, livery charges, royalty income, catering sales, charges for services

provided to Members and gain on disposal of investment property.

6 FEEHAE 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
BT (BiEE1l) Staff costs (note 11) 3,059 2,885
EERS Prize money 810 799
EihEEERNES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 134 130
ZEIAT BN & Auditor’s remuneration 4 4
EES Stewards’ remuneration = -
W - RERBMITE (fEE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 897 870
EERNEEL R Amortisation for leasehold land and
T th{E FAREE S (FIEEL13) land use rights under operating leases (note 13) 29 25
FIANIEETTRIER M#EERL Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (29) (25)
REMEFRE (MEE14) Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) - 1
W RERBMRE (fEE12) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 5 8
EEmAA Cost of inventories sold 499 435
H & AN Other operating costs 1,938 1,657
7,346 6,789
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7 SURPLUS FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
HETHHEMBEENR Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets:
- ERtEB—BRERN — realisation of amounts previously recognised
RESHABLH/ (FE) 21 in investment revaluation reserve at 1 July 223 12
- NEEFREENEE — amounts arising in current year (192) 544
31 556
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - (95)
FIRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 43 45
SERERE WG Dividend income from alternative investments 24 102
R ERESFE WG Interest income from listed debt securities 137 131
Ik E I ERE SR B WS Interest income from unlisted debt securities 70 65
TESMI ANFRE / (FE) Net gains/(losses) of derivative financial instruments 135 (165)
BRAFEEEBERVIRNEMIEEENT RS Net gains of other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — 3
EEWE Management fees (15) (16)
425 626
8 HAEERENERLR 8 SURPLUS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
HETMHBENKEEN (5E)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets:
- ERtEB—BRERN — realisation of amounts previously recognised
RESHBLH/ (FE) 21 in investment revaluation reserve at 1 July 285 27
- NEEFREENEE — amounts arising in current year (412) 673
(127) 700
FIRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 106 96
R ERESFE WG Interest income from listed debt securities 113 103
Ik E I ERE SR B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 64 64
TESMI ANFERE / (FE) Net gains/(losses) of derivative financial instruments 69 (88)
EEWE Management fees (31) (30)
194 845
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9 HIE 9 TAXATION
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
AE PSR Current income tax
- 58 — Hong Kong 345 322
- BB — outside Hong Kong 16 7
- BEAFERE — adjustments in respect of prior years (16) =
IEIERITE (KiEE24) Deferred taxation (note 24)
- B8 — Hong Kong 76 6
- BB — outside Hong Kong 4 10
425 345

BRFEHDREAFE AT ERBEFIRED 2175
BA(ZO——F: @2 tAH0) REHE - F8
BUMNERRBUR R FTELE VPSS - iR AR EEAN
iR o

EERHARSAEENERTIR - BRBEFEBFE
BB ENBIRZRENT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
HIBRFIIE « BIBREETAESZEEBIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,

ERTHEAESRERESAINELR transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 4,890 4,561
BFE16.5% (ZO——*F : 16.5%) T& Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) 807 752
HiBERFEEBHENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 6 7
BERH NSRS e Tax effect of non-taxable income (285) (262)
FAI0%i S H s S E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 76 44
RURERARNBEE Tax effect of approved charitable donations (186) (181)
BEFERARE Adjustments in respect of prior years (16) -
Hith Others 23 (15)
BEZH Taxation charge 425 345
10 #x 10 APPROPRIATIONS

BRTEEESELELSTES ((EXEE]) BE
BEBFHRASRNE TR BIREETES  {MFES
R e

Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) represents transfer of

certain of the Group’s net surplus to the Trust for its charitable purposes.

11 EIRAE 11 STAFF COSTS

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011

FeRHEMBA Salaries and other costs 2,938 2,706

RBIRERA - REH-KETE Pension costs — defined contribution plan 32 27

BIREHAN - REBFFTE (HEEL8) Pension costs — the Scheme (note 18) 22 90

BESETEIHR Contributions to MPF scheme 67 62
3,059 2,885

174
175



12 9z - R RIM

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ @ Group
RMERNAE L EETH
Leasehold B T72EA
land under B Plant and Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O——FtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2011 1,561 3,750 9,318 582 15,211
e Additions - 106 812 373 1291
B Transfers - 32 198 (230) -
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - (10) - - (10)
B2E Disposals - = (264) - (264)
BEXHIBERE Currency translation differences = = 7 2 9
ZO—ZEXRA=THRANE Cost at 30 June 2012 1,561 3,878 10,071 727 16,237
ZO——FtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2011 (992) (2,588) (7,036) - (10,616)
REEWFE Depreciation for the year (16) (112) (769) - (897)
REERE Impairment for the year = = (1) (4) (5)
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties = 10 = = 10
BE Disposals - = 262 = 262
BEXHIAERE Currency translation differences - - (4) = (4)
TO—ZHEARA=ZTHEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2012 (1,008) (2,690) (7,548) (4) (11,250)
ZO—ZHEARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2012 553 1,188 2,523 723 4,987
—O—OFtR—HKAE Cost at 1 July 2010 1,661 3,726 9,291 406 14,984
e Additions - 14 421 401 836
i Transfers = 11 82 (93) =
EERTEEHENEE LR i FERE Transfer to leasehold land and
land use rights under operating leases - - - (135) (135)
BE Disposals - (1) (493) = (494)
BEXHIAERE Currency translation differences = = 17 3 20
ZO——EXRB=1THRAE Cost at 30 June 2011 1,561 3,750 9,318 582 15,211
ZO—OFtA—HEBNERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2010 (975) (2,467) (6,780) - (10,222)
REEFE Depreciation for the year (17) (114) (739) = (870)
AEERE Impairment for the year = (7) (1) — (8)
BE Disposals - = 491 = 491
BEXHIAERE Currency translation differences = = (7) = (7)
ZO——FRA=+HERNERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2011 (992) (2,588) (7,036) - (10,616)
ZO——FARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2011 569 1,162 2,282 582 4,595
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont.)

E& Club
RMERNAE L EETH
Leasehold RAB R B T72EA
land under BgF Plant and  Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O——FtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2011 1,541 3,270 7,948 461 13,220
e Additions - 100 742 219 1,061
B Transfers - 32 193 (225) -
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - (10) - - (10)
NE) 2 Inter-company transfer - - (2) 1 (1)
B2E Disposals - - (253) - (253)
“O—=—FXRA=1+HEAE Cost at 30 June 2012 1,541 3,392 8,628 456 14,017
ZO——FtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2011 (992) (2,231) (6,158) — (9,381)
REEWFE Depreciation for the year (16) (96) (604) - (716)
REERE Impairment for the year = = - (4) (4)
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties = 10 = = 10
NE) 2 E R Inter-company transfer = = 2 = 2
BE Disposals - = 251 = 251
ZO—=ZFARA=ZTHEBFERREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2012 (1,008) (2,317) (6,509) (4) (9,838)
ZO—ZHEARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2012 533 1,075 2,119 452 4,179
—O—OFtR—HKAE Cost at 1 July 2010 1,541 3,248 8,028 255 13,072
e Additions - 13 332 286 631
i Transfers = 10 70 (80) =
25 Disposals - (1) (482) = (483)
ZO——EXRB=1THRAE Cost at 30 June 2011 1,541 3,270 7,948 461 13,220
—O—-OftA—HEBMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2010 (975) (2,125) (6,062) = (9,162)
REEINE Depreciation for the year (17) (99) (577) = (693)
REERE Impairment for the year = (7) = = (7)
25 Disposals - - 481 = 481
ZO——FRA=THEBTERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2011 (992) (2,231) (6,158) - (9,381)
ZO——FARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2011 549 1,039 1,790 461 3,839

AA=ZTREREEATHENEE D A REFE

The net book value at 30 June of leasehold land under finance leases comprised the following:

HApaE
£ Group E& Club
2012 2011 2012 2011
EEBHEN Held in Hong Kong
REEN (R+EUE) Long-term leases (over 50 years) 193 194 193 194
FERY (TFEZEETF) Medium-term leases (10 — 50 years) 360 369 340 349
EHEIEY (TFHUT) Short-term leases (less than 10 years) - 6 - 6
553 569 533 549
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13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

&M@ Group 5% Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
+tBA—BRAAE Cost at 1 July 1,379 = = —
bich= Additions - 936 - =
EEREIPETHIRER Transfer from projects in progress — 135 — =
R g RABARE Transfer from long-term prepayments — 258 — =
BEXHIBERE Currency translation differences 22 50 — =
NE=tTHRARE Cost at 30 June 1,401 1,379 = =
+ A —HERE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (26) - - -
REE Amortisation for the year (29) (25) - =
BEXHIBERE Currency translation differences - (1) - -
ANA=1THZEE#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (55) (26) - -
NE=+THREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,346 1,353 — =

AAZTREEXREATHENES LR + 1A

The net book value at 30 June of leasehold land and land use rights under operating leases comprised

FEREEE  EFEHE the following:
&M@ Group 5% Club
2012 2011 2012 2011
ERBEIMNEEN Held outside Hong Kong
FHRY (TEZR+F) Medium-term leases (10 — 50 years) 1,346 1,353 = —
1,346 1,353 = _

14 #%#EYE 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

£EREE Group and Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
+A—HAARE Cost at 1 July 25 27
EHERHET Transfer from buildings 10 =
ERTHESEEE Transfer to assets held for sale - (2)
ANA=THRAE Cost at 30 June 35 25
+tBA—HEZENE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (22) (23)
AEERTE Depreciation for the year = (1)
ERRET Transfer from buildings (10) -
ERTRESEEE Transfer to assets held for sale — 2
ANA=THERBTE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (32) (22)
ANA=THREFE Net book value at 30 June 3 3

BRENEEN—O—=—FARA=+HAR=O0O——FA
=1+8 > 2RBEBY - SERNEEMLER [ P27
ERARIRREHEENEERARLRETE
HLE - MEARRERHSNRITERDEEET -
FIBEREMFEIURNEE - RERPR - REMWEND
FEEANEERT (ZO——F  OE-—FT BEE
7)) BREEFAERBEFHAEYE  ZAEYER
FENTEHAERXA=REOT=G8ET -

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers “Jones Lang LaSalle Limited” and “Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited” respectively. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market. The investment
properties are located in Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$800 million
(2011: HK$416 million) at the end of the reporting period, which included five properties transferred
from buildings during the year with a market value of HK$342 million at end of year.
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15 INVESTMENTS IN, LOANS TO AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

&M@ Group 5% Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
HEATIRE - Investments in subsidiaries —

LT - BRRAE Unlisted shares, at cost - = 1,134 1,134
B EA BT ERE R Loans to subsidiaries = = 1,909 1,910
PR B HIE A T HIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries — = 907 147
EATFHEATNRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries — = (3,694) (3,202)

BB AR AENERIEIER - FEWRAE - &
REHEREHEE - ERNOIREEE - BEAQXTVEE
EE=

FEWR B MY B 2 B YRR BRI SRIR R - RBANE
ARMEHZEREFER - BRFIRIRA - RISLUERNT
SHNEFE - WEARMEHEREEE - BEFUENERE
BEEENPEERS -

FE T M A R FIR L EIKA - RIS LUERHNTS
FREE - WARMEHERHER - BREFURNIREE
EEAENVEEES °

BEETENBARIFENGESHBERRE-—BAT
tEE-BATNE-

16 #EFHIEERE

The loans to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values.

The majority of the amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market
rates and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

Amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market rates and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

The principal subsidiaries of the Club are shown on pages 197 to 198 of the consolidated financial
statements.

16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

&M@ Group 5% Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
+tA—H At 1 July 54 36 - -
Fr itz A Share of profit 49 15 = =
BEXHIRERE Currency translation differences — 3 — =
~B=1+H At 30 June 103 54 - -
HEEFIEEFSOT Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:
ERFEFARANE ([HE]) EMRINEMERTRAF : EERAREHRRA SERESENERE It
Incorporated in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), FTEEK Authorised and Effective percentage
limited by registered capital: Principal activities paid up capital held by the Club indirectly
TEFREEEERMERAT RHESBHERHE - BIEIIR AREBRTER 90%

China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech
(Beijing) Co., Ltd

RESEQAMNE  UESELANSUABERLRTE
BREERRMARADKEIEMNES HZGE - Eit
SEHERIEHLBEFERALRK -

B E B AR

provision of computer technology,
technical training and
business information consultancy

RMB60,000,000

Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners has unilateral control over the
economic activities of China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd and hence, the Group’s
interests are accounted for as a jointly controlled entity.
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16 H#EEHEERE (&)
BEARZSHEREZAA=THLENEEEEHFEEN A summary of financial information of the jointly controlled entity based on its management accounts

16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (cont.)

BRERFENT - as of 30 June is as follows:
£ Group 5& Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
£EEIFEN SEEFEN -3=¢=25k:0] BFEEEN
BRESL BREESL BERESL BERESL
Group’s Group’s Club’s Club’s
effective effective effective effective
interest interest interest interest
100% 90% 100% 90% - - - -
FRBEE Non-current assets 32 29 126 113 = = = —
REBEE Current assets 255 229 100 90 - - = =
mEEE Current liabilities (172) (155) (166) (149) - - - -
R Equity 115 103 60 54 - - - -
Wz Income 234 211 177 159 — — = =
Z i Expenses 156 140 158 139 - - = =
FRFE B IEF] Profit after taxation 55 49 16 15 - — = =
SEAEHEZEFEESENREIES REMEMA  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
afE-
17 REREAES 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
£E Group 5% Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE Equities
EEBLSH Listed in Hong Kong 1,093 924 1,093 924
V=2 k) Listed overseas 1,946 3,288 1,946 3,288
EE™ Unlisted 48 51 48 51
3,087 4,263 3,087 4,263
BEXFS Debt securities
ERBLM Listed in Hong Kong 98 97 - -
V=2 k) Listed overseas 4,112 3,545 2,708 2,198
kL Unlisted 1,472 1,376 1,234 1,252
5,682 5,018 3,942 3,450
BERE Alternative investments
w8 Em Listed overseas 98 92 98 92
Lt Unlisted 3,759 2,884 3,354 2,476
3,857 2,976 3,452 2,568
12,626 12,257 10,481 10,281
TTESR I A (FiEE28) Derivative financial instruments (note 28) (26) - (26) =
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 71 320 71 320
EE Deposits 352 435 = -
13,023 13,012 10,526 10,601




17 REHREES (&)
EERBEMFNERESRERNMETHERF =
DHBBEDZNEZEAROEN— (ZO——F25IH
BOZZHMUARMOEEZN) - KERSERISNES
HEREFRNRAEEEE N VEERS - MENEY
BHTHRASNBELERAE (ZO——F25At
FRAEF) °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & % & & M &

17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS (cont.)

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 4.06% and
4.91% for the Group and Club respectively (2011: 3.49% and 4.09% respectively). The carrying
amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
remaining maturities were 7 years and 9 years for the Group and Club respectively (2011: 7 years
and 9 years respectively).

&M@ Group 5% Club

2012 2011 2012 2011

REBREASUTIERITE : Long-term investment portfolios are

denominated in the following currencies:
=T usb 68% 45% 62% 43%
Bz EUR 11% 12% 14% 13%
BT HKD 9% 19% 11% 19%
HEE GBP 3% - 4% -
H JPY 2% 5% 3% 5%
ARHE RMB - 12% - 13%
HihE#s Other currencies 7% 7% 6% 7%
100% 100% 100% 100%
18 Hih&EE 18 OTHER ASSETS

£EREE Group and Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011

HitEEREEMBRRERA
CRANEERE
BRSTERASEENT :
ANNENERE
SREENAFEER

3=

RERNEEEE

BERRRAIBAREFEE

REBAFEWREHRAT ¢
+tA—H
MERE S HRE N RITRBRA
F 2 A
EREXNNENE

AREFNENBEEER
BEREEMHR

ANA=TBANNERNERE
FAANEEQXFEELZBHNOT ¢

+tA—H
SEEENEE®R
RBE (B18)/ B
BEA

EE A
EXHENE

ANA=T BN EEEATEERE

Other assets represented pension assets of the Group’s Scheme
recognised in the statement of financial position
which were determined as follows:

Present value of obligation 3,479 3,122
Fair value of Scheme assets (2,568) (2,870)
Deficit 911 252
Unrecognised actuarial losses 1,264 539
Net pension assets in the statement of financial position (353) (287)

Reconciliation of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation was as follows:

At 1 July 3,122 3,046
Current service cost net of employee contributions 138 139
Interest cost 69 64
Actual benefits paid (270) (177)
Actuarial losses on obligation 419 49
Actual employee contributions 1 1
Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,479 3,122

The movement in the fair value of
Scheme assets of the year was as follows:

At 1 July 2,870 2,500
Expected return on Scheme assets 209 181
Actuarial (losses)/gains (330) 276
Employer contributions 88 89
Employee contributions 1 1
Benefits paid (270) (177)
Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,568 2,870
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18 Hih&E (&)

18 OTHER ASSETS (cont.)

&M@ Group

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
ERRRTPEERNIENT : The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:

35 B AR A A A Current service cost 138 140

B R A Interest cost 69 64

sFEIEENTESTER Expected return on Scheme assets (210) (181)

ERERNBEFER Net actuarial losses recognised 25 67
FFABIRAREEE (FIEEL1L) Total included in staff costs (note 11) 22 90

CRANGANEEERLHLABH—E-_TEBT (=
O——& MmEEFLEEERT) -

The actual return on Scheme assets recognised was a gain of HK$120 million (2011: HK$457
million).

£E KRB Group and Club

HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RERAGENRE Present value of

defined benefit obligation 3,479 3,122 3,046 3,047 2,863
FEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,568) (2,870) (2,500) (2,317) (3,011)
B8/ (B&) Deficit/(surplus) 911 252 546 730 (148)
TEIEENAREE /(W) Experience losses/(gains)

on Scheme liabilities 60 (27) (111) 5 99
STEIEENEREE /(W) Experience losses/(gains)

on Scheme assets 330 (276) (121) 782 363

EER-O—=FENEMMURERAYNA/NTEER
BT (ZO—ZF : NTABEEET) °

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$85 million for the year 2013 (2012: HK$89
million).

£ERES Group and Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
FEEEEE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
BE Equities 1,514 59% 2,013 70%
EEESFRES Fixed income securities and cash 758 30% 857 30%
HHEE Hedge funds 296 11% = =
2,568 100% 2,870 100%

M EREERRSD IR/ E 22— (Z0—
—F I HIZZHD)  FAEENRBETEHRE
RASZE(ZO——F 1 BOZLHA) r MHFEH
EHRMATLRARELI2W (ZO——F 1 D
zm) e

AAEENRBBTRBUERTREBER TARE
ENRFBREE - RE - EREFREHPESHRGT
EEGES SIS SEE By

The principal actuarial assumptions used were: discount rate 1.00% (2011: 2.30%), long-term
expected rate of return on Scheme assets 7.00% (2011: 7.50%) and long-term expected rate of
salary increases 4.00% (2011: 4.00%).

The long-term expected return on Scheme assets was determined by considering the expected
returns available on the assets under the current investment policy. Expected returns on equities,
fixed income securities and hedge funds reflected long-term average rates of return.



19 EHEHEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & % & & M &

19 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

£EREE Group and Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEXFS Debt securities
3k Ei Unlisted 503 266
BRAFEEEBERYIRNEMUMEEE Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23 52
526 318

EERSEMENEBEIESNMETIERFIZLESD
Bt (ZO——HF 5oz HN L) - KER
SEMFNERRESNREEERAAVEERS - ™
HMEFHIRTHREIBZ—F (ZO——F : MF) -
BEHES LB THETINE -

20 HivmBEERFRBEE

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 2.71% for the Group and
Club (2011: 2.87%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values
and their weighted average remaining maturities were 1 year for the Group and Club (2011: 2 years).
The debt securities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) or United States Dollar
(“UsD”).

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS

&M@ Group 5% Club

HEBR in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
HtRsEE Other current assets

=& Inventories 97 88 41 43

B R EWFE (FEE33.1.c.0i) Loans and receivables (note 33.1.c.ii) 317 299 250 222

FEFRIE Prepayments 466 373 175 154

PTHESRMI A (KizE28) Derivative financial instruments (note 28) (1) (2) (1) (2)

879 758 465 417

EEREENERREBRFEFIREEI Z TR
B2ttt (ZO——525RBE 2t TERE
DzttN\) BUBREE - HBRUEMERIRE -

Hit3EREEE
Hit e REEERKERILTBEEEESMERL AN
T RYEINHRBBLAES - KEFEREEL
R M ZE M (5T R 6E A R HA DA B 4R 8 o

21 EHER - RITER RERHMEDHES

(a) KERFENERFAROMEFIIERRE 25
RESZ-HERAR-H DN (ZO——F255
BoZ—H-=R-H-H) FEERSEHNEH
FRIREEEEA NP EERS - MEMEFRS
BTHRIBBETHERATAE (ZO——F
DRIR/RNTEOBERATER) - BEFRUB TR
EHE -

BE-O—Z—FXA=1THL SENETHBER
AEFEHRNERTFOSERERESEEYA
BEt—FEOThEEST (ZO——& : IE=F
—BHEERT)  UARBRETINE  XZHESD
EEFRE -

70% and 77% of the loans and receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group and Club
respectively (2011: 75% and 78% respectively), the rest of the balances were denominated in
other currencies.

Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets represented long-term prepayments of rental for the land and property
of Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

21 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES, CASH AND OTHER LIQUID FUNDS

(a) The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 2.05% and 2.14%
for the Group and Club respectively (2011: 1.23% and 1.25% respectively). The carrying
amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
remaining maturities were 74 days and 69 days for the Group and Club respectively (2011: 94
days and 97 days respectively). The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD or USD.

(b) As at 30 June 2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$1,149 million
(2011: HK$421 million) denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and USD which were held by
certain subsidiaries with bank accounts operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.
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21 EHER - RITER BEREMEDHER (&)

(c) EEREENRERASEBYBE T ELT=
BEETHEEES (ZO0——F | tEENTA
BEBT)  BWEFREMARRENSEHE &
BERHIEE23 ©

21 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES, CASH AND OTHER LIQUID FUNDS (cont.)

(c) Cash and cash equivalents included HK$1,673 million of customer funds for the Group and
Club (2011: HK$1,446 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed
in note 23.

22 \HE®R 22 SHORT-TERM LOANS

&M@ Group 5% Club
HEET in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
EIRAER Unsecured loans 141 180 - =
WK REHRTRRER - AHANER - F£RZE  The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months and interest

BAZEBARERENA (ZO——FRBEIZTEHN
AERHS)  c ENNREEEEEAFEERSE - &
FANRBEITE -

FANERFEXHANEEBT (ZO——F : —
TEBR) -

23 EARRREKRE

rates were between 5.60% and 5.85% per annum (2011: between 4.86% and 5.60% per annum).
The carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were denominated
in RMB.

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$9 million (2011: HK$10 million).

23 CREDITORS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

&M@ Group 5% Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011 2012 2011
B R R ERFE Trade payables and receipts in advance 3,228 3,050 2,054 1,897
Hoth T BRFA % FEST FRIB Other payables and accruals 1,397 1,177 809 671
4,625 4,227 2,863 2,568

EEREFENEZRARIRALE  F +AEL
T-EBEINEERFENR (ZO——F : +HEME
FTAREEER) UWERBREBEERERREEEY
AEEFRBN ST E S - SBERME21 -

24 IEEBIE (BfE)/ &E
FREFAFBARRRARELSE (BF)/ EEEB
REHSBERNT :

Trade payables and receipts in advance included HK$1,673 million of customer accounts’ deposits
for the Group and Club (2011: HK$1,446 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of
customer funds held which was included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 21.

24 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the statement of financial position,
and the movements during the year were as follows:

£8 Group 58 Club
nETE EERIK TR EERIK
HIRRER BRIRA HIBRER BRRA
Accelerated Employee Accelerated Employee
depreciation retirement Hity 4z depreciation retirement Hith ko)
BEBT in HK$ million allowances  benefit cost Others Total allowances  benefit cost Others Total
—O——%+tA—H At 1 July 2011 (69) = 5 (64) (66) = 1 (65)
NBak=Ex Charged to
income statement (39) (35) (6) (80) (37) (35) - (72)
ZO—=f3XA=+H At 30 June 2012 (108) (35) (1) (144) (103) (35) 1 (137)
—O—O%tA—H At 1 July 2010 (60) — 12 (48) (59) = 1 (58)
NBak=Ex Charged to
income statement (9) = (7) (16) (7) = = (7)
—O——%7XA=+H At 30 June 2011 (69) = 5 (64) (66) = 1 (65)
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25 fi#iE 25 RESERVES
£8 Group E& Club
REEHRE RESHRE
RERHE  Investment ERfEE Z&M4%E  Investment
Accumulated revaluation Exchange #%8 Accumulated revaluation ko)
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total reserves reserve Total
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 20,859 391 78 21,328 17,363 295 17,658
FRRBEER Retained surplus
for the year 2,453 - - 2,453 1,821 - 1,821
EMHBRELRSE Currency translation
differences = = 9 9 _ _ _
A e Deficit on revaluation
MR EENEGEE of available-for-sale
financial assets - (179) = (179) = (207) (207)
A ERKEE Realised gains on disposal
HERFHE B IH I of available-for-sale
B ERBARRE financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - (223) - (223) - (223) (223)
= (402) = (402) = (430) (430)
—O—=—%x~A=+H At 30 June 2012 23,312 (11) 87 23,388 19,184 (135) 19,049
—O—O%tAhA—H At 1 July 2010 19,288 (640) 48 18,696 15,765 (717) 15,048
FARERER Retained surplus
for the year 1,571 - - 1,671 1,598 - 1,598
BEXHIRERE Currency translation
differences - - 30 30 - - -
A HE Surplus on revaluation
MREENEGLRR of available-for-sale
financial assets - 1,043 - 1,043 - 1,024 1,024
A ERKEE Realised gains on disposal
HERFHE 2 H IR of available-for-sale
B ERBARRE financial assets
reclassified to
income statement = (12) = (12) = (12) (12)
- 1,031 - 1,031 - 1,012 1,012
—O——%x<A=+H At 30 June 2011 20,859 391 78 21,328 17,363 295 17,658
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26 HREE

26 CONTINGENCY FUND

£EREE Group and Club

REEHRE
Eerttr Investment
Fund revaluation #aEE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 11,436 1,052 12,488
e AR Transfer from income statement 194 = 194
A HENKEENEEIE Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (572) (572)
A HENKEEHERN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
ERREWNEEHN S ERANRGEE financial assets reclassified to income statement - (285) (285)
= (857) (857)
—O—Z=—®%xA=+H At 30 June 2012 11,630 195 11,825
—O—O%tAH—H At 1 July 2010 10,591 (29) 10,562
e R R Transfer from income statement 845 = 845
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 1,108 1,108
A HENKEEHERN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
ERREWNEEHN S ERANGEE financial assets reclassified to income statement = (27) (27)
- 1,081 1,081
—O——%xA=+H At 30 June 2011 11,436 1,052 12,488
BRESRERK Represented by Contingency Fund investments:
£EREE Group and Club
BEHBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
A ENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
iES Equities
EEBLSH Listed in Hong Kong 2,650 2,916
w8 Em Listed overseas 4,690 5,156
7,340 8,072
BEXFS Debt securities
EEHNLET Listed overseas 2,772 2,295
JFEEH Unlisted 1,334 1,408
4,106 3,703
fTHESRMI A (KiEE28) Derivative financial instruments (note 28) (16) 8
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 395 705
11,825 12,488

EERBEMENEBRESOMETIERFIZLAESD
ZOBEEN(ZO——F 5o 2MEHE-N) - KER
SEMFNERRESNREEERAAVEERSE - ™
HiEF9RTHRABNAF (ZO——F : LF) -

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 4.78% for the Group and
Club (2011: 4.18%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values
and their weighted remaining average maturities were 9 years for the Group and Club (2011: 9

years).




26 EREE (&)

26 CONTINGENCY FUND (cont.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 7 & & fff &

£EREE Group and Club

2012 2011
BERAESREUTIEEITE : Contingency Fund investments are
denominated in the following currencies:
EV usb 47% 45%
BT HKD 24% 26%
5 EUR 12% 14%
H JPY 6% 5%
HEE GBP 4% 3%
HihE# Other currencies 7% 7%
100% 100%
27 BERES 27 DEVELOPMENT FUND
£ M Group E® Club
REEMRE RESHRE
H&48  Investment H&48  Investment
Fund  revaluation e Fund  revaluation ko)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 1,015 6 1,021 = = =
e AR Transfer from
income statement 18 - 18 - - -
A HENKEENEGEIE Deficit on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - (10) (10) = = =
—O—=%xA=+H At 30 June 2012 1,033 4) 1,029 - - -
—O—O%tA—H At 1 July 2010 1,015 (15) 1,000 - - =
AHHENKEENEHRE Surplus on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - 21 21 - - -
—O——%x<A=+H At 30 June 2011 1,015 6 1,021 - - =
BRESHIMKEE  BIARBREAESZA © The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.
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28 fTHSmT A

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

£ERES Group and Club

REREHS ERESRE

Long-term  HttREB&EE Contingency

investment  Other current Fund

portfolios assets investments

HEBT in HK$ million (FftzE note 17)  (BftaE note 20)  (Bff&E note 26)
RHEFEN Forward contracts on bonds 2 = 1
RHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts (24) - (19)

e Futures 1 =

HARE Options 1 = 1
=5 Swaps (6) (1) (5)
—O—=—®%xA=+H At 30 June 2012 (26) (1) (16)
RHEFEN Forward contracts on bonds = 1
RHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts (2) 4
e Futures = 8
HARE Options = 1
=5 Swaps - (6)
—O——%x<A=+H At 30 June 2011 (2) 8

29 IRHIE - HIEREETESBRERRURERT
RAESRERESHNRMGIERFETEENFER

29 RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION, CHARITABLE DONATIONS TO CHARITIES
TRUST, TRANSFER TO CONTINGENCY FUND AND DEVELOPMENT FUND TO NET CASH GENERATED

SR FROM OPERATIONS

&M@ Group
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
HIBRFIIE » BIBREEAESZEEBIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,

ERTHEAESRERESAINELR transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 4,890 4,561
Frib HREFIE RS RF] Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity (49) (15)
HEMHBENKEENEE / (BE) Deficit/(surplus) on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 142 (1,210)
dsE Dividend income (173) (243)
F 2 Uk 2= Interest income (509) (424)
FEXZH Interest expense 9 10
TTESMIANTF (ks)/ BHia Net (gains)/losses of derivative financial instruments (204) 253
BRAFEEEBERVIRNEMIEEENT RS Net gains of other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (3)
HEREWERER Gain on disposal of investment property (883) -
HEME  RERSEMEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment = 1
W - RIERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 897 870
REYEFE Depreciation of investment properties = 1
Y~ RAERBEMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 8
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets = 95
EHEESEH Movement in working capital

FEEM Increase in inventories 9) (5)

B EWRIEE N Increase in loans and receivables 9) (52)

FE{S RGN Increase in prepayments (93) (51)

FEASBRFRIG AN Increase in creditors 319 418
REIFEARERD / (3840) Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments 30 (29)
HihEEEmM Increase in other assets (66) -
EEFEMEENRS Cash generated from operations 4,297 4,185
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30 *iE 30 COMMITMENTS
30.1 EXEE 30.1 Capital commitments
REBIARGREENERZHOT ¢ Capital expenditures not yet incurred at the end of the reporting period were as follows:
&M@ Group

BEHBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
BRI L EHNERELEE Contracted but not provided for 1,538 880
EHEBRTIEN Authorised but not contracted for 2,021 1,820

3,559 2,700
30.2 HAERE 30.2 Lease commitments

RAA=TH  REFTATBENEEBRORE - HRA
XAHNREEEHERNT

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

&M@ Group
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
pt=l Buildings
R—FR Within one year 81 70
RE_ZFHEFR In the second to fifth year inclusive 110 99
RERFE After the fifth year 35 44
226 213

31 BHEHEl
EEAEMESRKRY T —BAERAF IR —HEREM
et B o WA BITRIE CHER KT EURBI) M -
YHBVETEAEE - o EETESE-HENE
BB LR EEE o IR BIRE CREIME I EEST
SURGI) =2 - W MRIB L HBRIS IR A o

32 BAEMEALTZRS
HREEESRRETERETETEESETA  UR
EESZANARERAMSERATNESTSE YR
FERARESRHAE RAULEERETES  BEFS
EAMNARSHARSERAARESENYREER
NEGEEE -

SEEAREHEEREMEREALTEETHNRS
M

32.1 EEEA

Fr - EERERTBREXIERYE  AETESHE
EREAAETERR(CO——F: OTHEE
BIT) °

32.2 HEEGIERREEN RS

EBEEFAR LR BRI ESRMER LD A WEE St
HAUBWRE-TEtEEERL (ZO——F  =F=H&
BT °

31 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of both
schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The Group also participates
in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”)
and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust
and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the jointly controlled entity and
other related parties:

32.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$50 million (2011: HK$44
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

32.2 Income from a jointly controlled entity
During the year, the Group received software license fee income of HK$17 million (2011: HK$32
million) from China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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32 MEMAEALZRS (&)
32.3 HARE
EEZEBTENLR  KE=HFTEXK BEEEY -
REREE - URAEERS - BEXBHAATSRAN
DHRE - NAEERY - BERRE - UARBAERS
XE URSEENKERERHANE - EEERHK
MR REEERAXEBMBE L R BATHERN
B

BREBHNX - EEREURERES 905K
SFRBMARIAN - EBNEERS - HEEFARREE
BHXEEZRN - EEELARBLIEBE - BIERRAE
KEEHESR 2R AREEY - EREY  URS
BRRE-HEBRERZA -

324 FEEEEHMH

EEBEFEMESEREE  YHEERZSSHHERE -
EZREEREEENEBRESHRERESHNE
A WERETEERHEER EHEZESREEEE
BHEE  URESREE - HTHBBEMAKEN
REENEL SENIEEERENEESRUKRATT
BAS - \Mu (ZO0——%F : 1) #TRENM
(ZO0——%F W) AEARNEEZES  F5BR
KERE+NEETNE -

BESYERBAR - TFALERDNMNE -

s

HEZESRREFRNFMO H=EHD :

@) EXH<
EXMEBREERFHE - FERAMZRMBENFIE

(b) 5BZ B # 1B &
ERMERBEARRNEBRETITRM

(c) BKiEF

RABFIEEBEARAES HRBRERKG BT
WimE - BT HELREEBE  SEIAANER
RARBEH - EXARBERERA SRR E
HERRESTHIEE -

EEZEERREFANEFHOT

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)

32.3 Shared services

The Group operates three primary businesses — horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six
lottery through separate legal entities. In order to maximise the Group’s operational efficiencies and
cost economies, these businesses share the use of the Club’s established common selling and
distribution channels, corporate management services, and infrastructure facilities, as well as back
office support. The Group adopts a policy to fulfill its objectives of financial independence with no
cross-subsidy amongst its different businesses.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and overall financial results are maintained in the
separate books of accounts of each business. Business specific revenue and expenses are directly
accounted for in those business results. The Group’s expenses on the shared services are charged
to each main line of business of horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery at cost plus
an appropriate mark-up.

32.4 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board
of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by the
Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key
management consists of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises the
Chief Executive Officer, eight (2011: eight) Executive Directors and two (2011: two) Directors, as
detailed on pages 18 to 19 of the Annual Report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the years under
review.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
HA < Basic compensation 55 53
BEREH NS Performance-related compensation 22 20
RREF Retirement benefits 12 20

89 93
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)
32.4 Key management compensation (cont.)

FARBIT - The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AE Number of individuals 2012 2011
E2 R Remuneration bands
1,000,001/t £ 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -
4,000,0017&7c£ 5,000,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001 % T £ 6,000,000 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 2 2
6,000,001 &7t £ 7,000,000 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 2 -
7,000,001 %t £ 8,000,000 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2 3
8,000,001 /&7t £9,000,0007%& 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 2 2
9,000,001 &7t £ 10,000,000 T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1 1
11,000,001 %7t £ 12,000,000 7T HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 - 1
17,000,001 &7t £ 18,000,000 7T HK$17,000,001 to HK$18,000,000 1 1
12 11
REEANSHESENETEEEEAS Key management left the Club before end of year 1 =
11 11
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

33.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the
investments.

(@) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. HKD is
pegged to USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. Majority of RMB
holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operation requirements in
PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities
and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following
major currencies had strengthened/weakened against HKD by the stated percentages, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased
as follows:
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
33.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) Market risk (cont.)

() B Eps (#) (i) Currency risk (cont.)
£8 Group
2012 2011
EEWRTY  HEARBE®  BEBIRTY HFARBEZ
B BERHTE Epad:) BRHNKE
IREEIER / $55 Effect on iEEEE /55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for  strengthened/ surplus for
BEET in HK$ million weakened by the year  weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 146 5% 183
|63 EUR 5% 29 5% 32
H JPY 5% 24 5% 24
TR GBP 5% 3 5% 6
5 Club
2012 2011
EEWRTY HERRBE®  BEBIRTY HFARBEZ
B BERNTE Epad:) BRHNTE
IREEIER / $55 Effect on iEEEE /55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for  strengthened/ surplus for
BEET in HK$ million weakened by the year  weakened by the year
ARHE RMB 5% 137 5% 174
|63 EUR 5% 29 5% 32
H JPY 5% 24 5% 24
R GBP 5% 3 5% 6
N ET =T (ii) Equity price risk

REERERRERNRZEERZES M| BUSENE
o HRRRERTH®  SSRERENEEBETR
At EBEAZZRZERRAR - BEREEFERS
SRR RAFIA AT HEREEEERT ©
RERPR  ERBEEERTENERLA /T
KD 2H - EEMAETEERIEFTENER
T EESEEESAEREANREELREG
HAHEREN A FEESEMEM/ BLAREL
FTERT (ZO——H  AELtT=g8%ER) -

(iii) FI= Rz
MEEBRIERTSANEREEB M| REENER > 5
ANFEENZERERSRENZREAR - A PEE
FRERRIETSFEREE  SIBMHEEBREE
WER - B RERERKRAETSFIREE - 513
PR EERARSRELEEBNEAR - AREEAR
BANERE  AUEBAZEAFEERESR
2REEMB

REJHAR - ARFIREBERAT  SRREM
A+EY THMMEUEZEZGEFTTENER
T FREBENBRBRERKELATNTAAEESBT
(ZO——F:=FTNhEESBT)  MEBEEREE
BEEREANBRESHRHBRTRA_ENT=88T
(ZO——& : —BhF=-EHEBRT) °

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s investment revaluation surplus
included within total equity would have increased/decreased by HK$570 million (2011: HK$673
million) as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest
bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$46 million higher (2011:
HK$39 million). The investment revaluation surplus included within total equity would have been
approximately HK$243 million lower (2011: HK$192 million) in response to the general increase
in interest rates.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

33.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is managed
primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price risk is
mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest
rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum
of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to
fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
and Club as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows:

£8 Group
2012 2011
Z@EARUT Z@AE—F —FLE =@EARUT =@ERE—H —FLE
Upto >3 months Over 4z Upto >3 months Over %
ABET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FITEMBEEE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
FEHRERK Short-term loans 116 25 - 141 - 180 - 180
FETBRR Creditors 4,161 216 - 4,377 3,590 241 = 3,831
DUSBREEAEN Net-settled derivative
TEKEaE financial liabilities 2 3 8 13 = 2 15 17
4,279 244 8 4,531 3,590 423 15 4,028
Bg Club
2012 2011
ZEARUT Z@AZE—F —FLE =@EARUT =@ERE—HF —FLE
Upto >3 months Over 4z Upto >3 months Over %
ABET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FLTEMBEEE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
FETBRR Creditors 2,539 187 - 2,726 2,048 216 - 2,264
BT HIE Amounts due
ARMRIE to subsidiaries 3,694 - - 3,694 3,202 = = 3,202
DUSBREEAEN Net-settled derivative
TEKEaE financial liabilities 2 3 8 13 = 2 15 17
6,235 190 8 6,433 5,250 218 15 5,483
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

33.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

As at 30 June 2012, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group and Club were HK$6,675 million (2011: HK$5,919 million). The table
below analyses the Group and Club’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June
2012 and 2011 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their
remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted
cash flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
and Club’s statements of financial position.

£E & EE Group and Club

2012 2011
ZEARUT =@EAZE—F ZEARUT =EAZE—F
Upto >3 months “zE Upto >3 months ko)
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
RHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
piitesl Outflows (6,279) (396) (6,675) (5,739) (180) (5,919)
A Inflows 6,236 395 6,631 5,743 181 5,924
(c) EERE (c) Credit risk

HMEEARRZHTF - ROBRIREZREREB
KE2RITENEMR  ALEEAZZEERR - F8
BEREERBEBHER - BERERITERS °

EEEBRERERZHFRIBEE  LRABER
FAGEFRRFNMBEEE  REMEZINEER
o EEREXZHFNEETARIBEIMEERE
BRE - EMEHALE - BIERZHFRASIHNE
BER - ERXZHFNEERR - ARRXZ MY
BERNEBEEEE -

() AZHIEEEE

BEMBEE (MHEE2.8) REME  BOGFE
BEMBARR KAV IREEE

(ii) ZERFE I KR FE A TS B
RZO—Z=HFXA=+H SERSESREBHEH
TE - AHREXYRAEDBENBEEERK KR
HNEWESRARDNAETNEREBIRNERE
T (ZO——F : 2RR LT -—BEEARNBERE
7T) e BEREENERXBIURCEBERS - ¥
BHESRIHRERTEUNBIRENEEBLER
R BUESRATRRSSEKERH  MEERR
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The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group's deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2012, the Group and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial assets
as defined in note 2.8 approximated their carrying amounts in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position.

(ii) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 2012, the trade receivables included in loans and receivables that were past due
but not determined to be impaired were HK$59 million and HK$9 million for the Group and Club
respectively (2011: HK$71 million and HK$9 million respectively). The overall impact of trade
receivables on the consolidated and Club’s financial statements is insignificant because the
Group’s principal businesses are transacted in cash with customers. The trade receivables mainly
relate to the Membership business where the credit risks are assumed by a licensed bank under
an affinity card agreement. All the receivables are due within one year.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
33.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making contributions
in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its statement of financial
position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations
through the Trust.

33.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in

which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were measured at fair value as at 30 June
2012:

£8 Group
BEHBT in HK$ million WAl Level 1 WAl Level 2 W3 Level 3 #%8 Total
&E Assets
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities 7,340 - - 7,340
BREFS Debt securities = 4,106 = 4,106
TESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 6 (22) - (16)
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AR HEMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 3,039 - 48 3,087
BREFS Debt securities = 5,682 = 5,682
BERE Alternative investments 98 = 3,759 3,857
TEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 1 (27) - (26)
BREEFEE Debt securities portfolio
AR HEMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BREFS Debt securities = 503 = 503
BRAFEEEBR Other financial assets at fair value
BRIRNEMIKEE through profit or loss = 23 = 23
HtRsERE Other current assets
TESmMIA Derivative financial instruments - (1) - (1)
10,484 10,264 3,807 24,555
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
33.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were measured at fair value as at 30 June

BEE 2011:
£8 Group
BEHBT in HK$ million WAl Level 1 WAl Level 2 W3 Level 3 #%8 Total
&E Assets
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities 8,072 - - 8,072
BERES Debt securities 3,703 = 3,703
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments = = 8
REKREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities 4,212 - 51 4,263
BREFS Debt securities 5,018 = 5,018
BERE Alternative investments = 2,884 2,976
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments (2) - -
BREEFEE Debt securities portfolio
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BREFS Debt securities 266 = 266
BRAFEEEBR Other financial assets at fair value
BRIRNEMIKEE through profit or loss 52 = 52
HityREEE Other current assets
PTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments (2) = (2)
12,386 9,035 2,935 24,356

RZO—Z=ZFR=O——F  ={EAFEEFEHAZ
BB RN EEEE

RIERBIBWRETEAFEENNBREERVEE
BEESREEWT ¢

During the years of 2012 and 2011, there were no significant transfers of financial assets among

the three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

The movements of the balance of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

based on Level 3 were as follows:

£® Group
BEBT in HK$ million 2012 2011
+tA—H At 1 July 2,935 2,367
EUTRRERN (F18) / W E 58 Total (losses)/gains recognised in
Ene Income statement - (95)
ZHEKEE Statement of comprehensive income (32) 288
A Purchases 1,273 375
HE Sales (369) -
NA=TH At 30 June 3,807 2,935
FERFFABRSERAFIERFRER Total losses for the year included in income statement and
REREASBHRNEEEE presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios - (95)
ERPRISENEEREE Total losses for the year included in income statement
RERFTARBERLIHEFEFRER for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
REBREASBHRNEEEE and presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios - (95)

34 BT
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34 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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MEBAS
RZO—Z=—FEXRA=1+H EENZEHBLREE :
EeRENERE It
FEHK BRTREERATMER BHE R
EEBAMKY  BE2EHAN
BHBERAE :

EREEEEEHYARAR REBEMTER ZRERER—B TS ERRG 100
EEESRREEERAT e RIS —ERER— B THEERED 100
EREERSERLT BERNETRHFERE —HERSR —ETHNZERERA 100
EESSEEKARAT EEEEEESENRHERELRNE —BERER—BTHNEERRG 100
EREED (K12) BRAH EBETRNERFEINEEA MRS R BT ER D 100
BREERAT EEEHRBRENER —TERSR —ETHNZERERNG 100
BREESEARAT EEEEERBEERAT —BRER B THE BRI 100

%Eﬁ%ﬁﬂ?%ﬁ%
EEEREKAREBRAT BEEESINERRE —BRER—BTHZERRKRD 100
EBEEEKAR (FE) BRAR BESEEERNERRE AERER—B TS ERRA 100
BEREEHRERRAA -
EBEEE (BZ) ARAF KREREEBESSNELBEESEERET = 100
HESECENEZZEANRBEAR
BELZEEESEMERATNERE
EBHEAMRAY  FE2EHEEH
BRGBBERAAE -
HKJC Reinsurance Limited ASENEKETRRERE TEBRER—EZTHRG 100
TERZEANREAEF AL
BELEHENAMELRERAA -
TEEREEEHERAT EETESE MR EHERLRE ATEEEBETRT 100
TREBEEREMERERAT TR E BRI B A B 1l B 38 R R R RS —FEBxxn 100
ENEEEEEEIRERAT TEMR L B I 58 S UL I ARAR B ARE+—FBATER 100
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2012:

Principal activities

Issued and fully paid up
share capital / registered capital

Effective percentage
held by the Club

Directly  Indirectly

Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:

HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited

HKJC Football Betting Limited
HKJC Lotteries Limited

The Jockey Club Membership
Services Limited

The Hong Kong Jockey Club
(Managers) Limited

HKJC Racing Club Limited

The Racing Club
Horse Management Limited

HKJC Business Ventures Limited

HKJC Business Ventures
(China) Limited

Limited by guarantee and
wholly controlled:

The Hong Kong Jockey Club
(Charities) Limited

Incorporated in Bermuda,
limited by share capital
and wholly owned:

HKJC Reinsurance Limited

Incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China, limited
by registered capital and
wholly owned:

Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club
Clubhouse Limited

Beijing HKJC Technology
Development Limited

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse
Training Limited

operates the horse race betting business
operates the football betting business
operates the Mark Six lottery business

manages Members’ social and
recreational facilities

acts as administrator for staff
retirement benefits scheme

manages the Racing Club’s operations

manages the HKJC Racing Club
Limited’s horse related activities

holds the equity interests of the Group’s
overseas business ventures

holds the equity interests of the Group’s
business ventures in China

acts as nominee for selected projects
and holds investments in the Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
Limited, on behalf of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club or The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust

insures the Group against certain
risks and exposures

manages Members’ social and
recreational facilities

provides computer hardware and
software technology development
and consulting services

constructs and operates horse
training facilities in Conghua

200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each

10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

120,000 shares of US$1 each

US$65,000,000

US$10,000,000

RMB1,290,000,000

100
100
100
100

100

100
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100



PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

BEZEASEREWAX

HEBT in HK$ million 2012* 2011*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83
FBERRIFEE Amounts wagered by customers 141,095 127,042
BERESRRA Betting and lottery revenue 25,422 23,480
EEH R ESHEHR Betting and lottery duty (16,022) (14,833)
SEIGFINITE-3=4 (71 Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (48) (51)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,154) (1,030)
AR RS Net margin and commission 8,198 7,566
Haplg A Other revenue 3,345 2,173
11,543 9,739

K A Operating costs (7,374) (6,772)
RERER Operating surplus 4,169 2,967
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 125 61
EERERRPBREHSHRR Surplus from securities investments and

long-term investment portfolios 425 626
BERESRENRER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 194 845
BisE A Finance costs 9) (10)
Bk Financial surplus 735 1,522
Frib HREE I B RF] Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 49 15
HBRTIE - BIREREETESESHEIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,

ERTHEAESRERESAINELR transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 4,953 4,504
BiE Taxation (432) (339)
HIRRBIRE - BBEREETESERERNR Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations to

ERTHEAESRERESAINELR Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund and

Development Fund 4,521 4,165
BRTEBESSLERETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

- BRES — Allocations Fund (1,600) (1,130)

- EXES® — Capital Fund (200) (670)
BREBRBEZENFERA Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,721 2,365
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (194) (845)
EHRTRRES Transfer to Development Fund (18) =
REBEFBNETERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 2,509 1,520
*ESEE-BATZEMEL - * Refer to note 1 on page 162.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

E 3
EEERTERE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
BB RIERE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
HEBT in HK$ million 2012* 2011* 2010* 2009* 2008*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83 83 78 78
ESHEREER A Amounts wagered by customers

on horse race betting 86,117 80,413 75,497 66,820 67,685
ESEELEREN Horse race betting

dividends and rebates (72,115) (67,211) (63,056) (55,583) (56,221)
EEBERA Horse race betting revenue 14,002 13,202 12,441 11,237 11,464
BEEBEH Horse race betting duty (10,159) (9,557) (9,002) (8,120) (8,286)
SRR F ot B S HEAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (48) (51) (41) (32) (30)
EEBYAR Horse race betting net margin 3,795 3,594 3,398 3,085 3,148
EREYERREETE Amounts wagered by customers

on football betting 47,285 39,763 38,908 35,108 34,442
EERBEELE Football betting dividends (39,404) (32,643) (32,494) (29,308) (28,238)
EEREBERA Football betting revenue 7,881 7,120 6,414 5,800 6,204
BBIEEH Football betting duty (3,940) (3,560) (3,207) (2,900) (3,102)
EEREBEAR Football betting net margin 3,941 3,560 3,207 2,900 3,102
REREERTHEE Amounts wagered by

customers on lottery 7,693 6,866 6,375 6,429 6,382
BEEE Lottery prizes (4,154) (3,708) (3,442) (3,472) (3,446)
#HUA Lottery revenue 3,539 3,158 2,933 2,957 2,936
BEBER Lottery duty (1,923) (1,716) (1,594) (1,607) (1,596)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,154) (1,030) (956) (964) (957)
REMHE Lottery commission 462 412 383 386 383
Hgu A Other net revenue 1,903 965 933 727 658
Il Total operating income 10,101 8,531 7,921 7,098 7,291
HELERAR Direct operating costs (4,921) (4,561) (4,410) (4,224) (4,195)
HIFIBR Miscellaneous donations (279) (203) (62) (50) (64)
e - # REREEXEH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (757) (750) (767) (667) (696)
HERE I Wi Total operating costs (5,957) (5,514) (5,239) (4,941) (4,955)
RERE Operating surplus 4,144 3,017 2,682 2,157 2,336
BIs Rk / (BE) Financial surplus/(deficit) 691 1,437 942 (2,258) 2,821
HMRTIE - BIREREETESESHEIUR Surplus/(deficit) before taxation,

HRETHERESR charitable donations to Charities Trust,
BRESHNES/ (BE) transfer to Contingency Fund and

Development Fund 4,835 4,454 3,624 (101) 5,157
BALSEYMMNAIREES Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 91 54 68 65 102

YT OIS RIUE R IR0 - BB
ESRERNORERTHALERERESHRE -

*2EREUBER -

The above figures represent the results before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,
transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund of racing and betting facilities.

* Financial data is for full seasons.



ERNSEEEBERAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
BERiE MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
HEET in HK$ million 2012* 2011* 2010* 2009* 2008*
Wz Income
0 S Membership subscriptions 217 172 166 160 156
SEASERSEERE Member's entrance
and qualification fees 130 109 81 80 75
EHRER (F58)/ Bt Catering (deficit)/surplus (23) (2) 7 (6) 6
HAith B eRER Other non-catering income 39 35 32 32 31
363 314 286 266 268
SESEKAEETHREY Direct membership
administration costs (267) (229) (214) (179) (161)
MEREEXSH Depreciation and
expensed project costs (91) (94) (87) (72) (59)
(358) (323) (301) (251) (220)
KR/ (5E) Operating surplus/(deficit) 5 (9) (15) 15 48
Bk Financial surplus 26 32 11 24 50
BRI R / (B518) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 31 23 (4) 39 98

RZO—Z=HFXA=+H EEEEEEKARLAKR
HFER T \EELTFAEBELT (ZO——F: T\E
ETNEEER)  BEWE RERSIHM=E=FN
BERRT (ZO——F: ZGNATLEEER) - &Y
REFETRNT=ZEERT (ZO——F : +EAT
NEEEL) EEHEEELRESET (ZO——%F:
AEBER)  RBEEAMONT-EEER (Z0—
—F ARET=ZEEER) ' RERBEE=RET
(ZO——F : —RtFTHEEEET) -

*EERFUBESR -

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2012 were HK$1,878
million (2011: HK$1,858 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$338 million
(2011: HK$389 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,093 million (2011: HK$1,064
million), deferred tax assets of HK$5 million (2011: HK$6 million), current assets of HK$642
million (2011: HK$573 million), less current liabilities of HK$200 million (2011: HK$174
million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

HREABFHE
E=E RACING
2012* 2011* 2010* 2009* 2008*
ESHYE Race meetings
HERE Day meetings 46 47 47 47 46
BEIRE Night meetings 37 36 36 31 32
FEW/N Total number of meetings 83 83 83 78 78
BihBEHISH Races on turf 689 689 691 655 652
2 RIEMBEBEFSH Races on all-weather track 80 78 76 78 78
HBISH Total number of races 769 767 767 733 730
B Horses
B HEFEHERE Total runners 9,704 9,502 9,736 9,179 9,136
B S EEFTHE Horses winning 1 race 321 321 328 279 344
BEMEEEETHE Horses winning 2 races 112 113 119 120 108
BH=1SEEFTHE Horses winning 3 races 46 44 39 43 41
BH=E U FEEETHA Horses winning over 3 races 20 20 18 19 11
BHEEFTHE Horses with winnings 499 498 504 461 504
AEBHESEBANESTHE Horses not winning — placed 422 399 397 420 364
REBHBESTEBANEETHE Horses not winning — unplaced 380 380 374 324 256
AREHEFTHAE Horses not raced 273 279 260 255 246
Brag Total horse population 1,574 1,556 M585 1,460 1,370
EREBT Retirements 438 430 397 360 322
EERE Prize money
REBE (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 826 785 782 763 718
FHF9EE (FET) Average prize money
per race (HK$'000) 1,074 1,023 1,020 1,042 983
BUrE¥IESE (TET) Average prize money
per horse (HK$'000) 525 504 509 523 524
FRAERESREET Percentage of horses
HETAZE L winning prize money in the year 63% 62% 64% 64% 68%
FRAERESREET Percentage of individual runners
HHEETAHE S winning prize money in the year 76% 75% 77% 78% 83%
FARBESESFEMN Percentage of horses recovering
FZREFTHHLE basic costs or more in the year 38% 36% 38% 38% 43%
EFAFHABAR (F) Average attendance
per meeting ('000)
B Happy Valley 17.8 17.1 17.5 17.7 17.3
DH Sha Tin 28.8 27.7 28.2 29.3 29.6
EFRIE (BEET) Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
BRI Standard bets 74,530 69,523 64,884 57,114 57,850
1 RIF Exotic bets 10,967 10,325 10,064 9,310 9,749
[E B B =M Fixed odds bets 620 565 549 396 86
HEE L] Total 86,117 80,413 75,497 66,820 67,685
*REBEHTTER * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.



%5 FINANCIAL

HEBT in HK$ million 2012* 2011* 2010* 2009* 2008*
BB BBURBIR Payments of duty and taxation
to Hong Kong Government

EEEEH Horse race betting duty 10,159 9,557 9,002 8,120 8,286
BEIEEH Football betting duty 3,940 3,560 3,207 2,900 3,102
RHEEH Lottery duty 1,923 1,716 1,594 1,607 1,596
FIEH Profits tax 412 322 295 238 242

16,434 15,155 14,098 12,865 13,226
RET BRIBEBRAES Donation in lieu of

Entertainments tax* to
The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 3 3 3 3

IR — NN =F N A — B - EEREEMM  * Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
ZLHRRSBFBENESASEBREBAES® B8+ equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong
FR2Z0O0=F=A=+—H8 HEZEHZ=_O—FHF for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2015.

=A=t+-R-

28 MEMBERSHIP
RABA=+8 as at 30 June 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
EREFEEEAY Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
2EEE Full Members 14,064 13,910 13,635 13,382 13,238
2EEE (S) Full Members (S) 184 189 187 189 193
EERHMEE Racing and other Members 8,058 7,928 7,674 7,429 7,115
HREEE Absent Members 4,863 4,798 4,792 4,771 4,705
AFEEE Corporate Members 178 178 171 168 162
27,347 27,003 26,459 25,939 25,413
HEEEEAY Number of The Racing Club Members
HHREEE Racing Club Members 619 535 450 358 275
BEANESBA# Number of Mainland Members
BABE Individual Members 587 459 345 169 40
AFEEE Corporate Members 72 55 40 17 12
28,625 28,052 27,294 26,483 25,740
KEESE GROUP EMPLOYEES
RAA=+8 as at 30 June 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
28 Full-time 5,545 5,385 5,310 5,303 5,137
FRE Part-time 20,859 21,428 20,981 20,956 20,163

*EEREVBER -

* Financial data is for full seasons.



